ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE RESOURCES STANDI NG COWM TTEE

March 4, 2005

1: 07 p. m
MVEMBERS PRESENT
Representative Jay Ranras, Co-Chair
Represent ati ve Ral ph Samuel s, Co-Chair
Representative Jim El ki ns
Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Gabriell e LeDoux
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton

Representati ve
Representati ve

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Kurt O son

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 130

"An Act granting certain
and establishing the un
for an effective date.”

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 130

Harry Crawford
Mary Kapsner

state land to the University of Al aska
and providing

versity research forest;

MOVED CSHB 130 (RES) OUT OF COW TTEE

SHORT TI TLE: UNI VERSI TY LAND GRANT/ STATE FOREST

SPONSOR( S) :

02/ 07/ 05
02/ 07/ 05
02/ 09/ 05
02/ 09/ 05
02/ 09/ 05
02/ 14/ 05
02/ 14/ 05
02/ 14/ 05
02/ 16/ 05
02/ 16/ 05
02/ 16/ 05
03/ 02/ 05
03/ 02/ 05

IIIITITTITIIIZ

HOUSE RES COW TTEE

RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

READ THE FI RST TI ME -
RES, FIN

RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( RES)

RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( RES)

RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( RES)

RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124
Heard & Hel d

REFERRALS

March 4, 2005



03/ 02/ 05 (H) M NUTE( RES)
03/ 04/ 05 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

W TNESS REG STER

DORI' S BAI LEY, Assenbly Menber

Cty and Borough of Sitka

Sitka, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

VALERY MCCANDLESS, Mayor
W angel |, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

STACEY FRI TZ, Student

Uni versity of Al aska

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

DEB SPENCER, Co-owner and Manager

Shoreline, Inc.

Pel i can, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

JOHN BURKE, Ceneral Manager

Sout hern Sout heast Regi onal Aquacul ture Associ ati on ( SSRAA)
Ket chi kan, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of renoving Neets Bay
from HB 130.

STACY STUDEBAKER
Kodi ak, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

TED SM TH, Mayor
Pet er sburg, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

MARK VI NSEL, Executive Director

Uni ted Fi shernen of Al aska

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

RON SCHONENBACH, Retired Enpl oyee
D vision of Mning, Land and Water
Depart ment of Natural Resources
Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 2- March 4, 2005



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

JOE BEEDLE, Vice President for Finance

Chi ef Financial Oficer and Treasurer Trustee

Land G ant Endownment Fund

University of Al aska

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 130 and agai nst the
changes in the commttee substitute (CS).

REBECCA MCGUI RE, G aduate Student

Uni versity of Al aska

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

ROSEMARY MCGUI RE
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

M KE REEVES
Hol I'is, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on problens with HB 130.

ROBERT LCEFFLER, Director

Di vision of Mning, Land and Vter

Depart ment of Natural Resources (DNR)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions regardi ng HB 130.

LORI MASTRELLA
Port Al exander, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

MONA CHRI STI AN
Pet er sburg, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

STEVE JOHNSON

Ki ksadi Tribal C an

Sitka, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

LEl GH GERBER, Menber

Ket chi kan Chanmber of Commerce

Ket chi kan, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 3- March 4, 2005



CHARLI E PI ERCY

Ket chi kan, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of renoving Neets Bay
from HB 130.

DEEDI E PEARSON
Kodi ak, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

JULI E HURSEY
Pet er sburg, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

M KE LI TZOWV
Kodi ak, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

DENNI S ROGERS
Pet er sburg, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

BOB LESHER
Pel i can, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

NORM CARSON
Pel i can, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

M KE SALLEE
Ket chi kan, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

M KE ROUND

Ket chi kan, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of renoving Neets Bay
from HB 130.

KEN DUCKETT

Uni ted Sout heast Alaska G Il Netters

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of renoving Neets Bay
fromHB 130.

JI M SLATER

Pel i can, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -4- March 4, 2005



CHRI S HOMNARD
Pel i can, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 130.

MYRL THOMPSON
Susitna Val l ey, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

JI M POUND, St aff

to Representative Jay Ranras

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding an anmendnent
of fered by Representative Ranras.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CO- CHAIR RAMRAS called the House Resources Standing Commttee

meeting to order at 1:07:06 PM Representatives Samnuel s,
Seaton, Elkins, Ranras, Gatto, Crawford, and Kapsner were
present at the call to order. Representative LeDoux arrived as
the neeting was in progress. Representatives Bill Thomas and

Peggy WIson were al so present.

HB 130- UNI VERSI TY LAND GRANT/ STATE FOREST

CO CHAI R RAMRAS announced that the only order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 130 "An Act granting certain state land to the
University of Alaska and establishing the university research
forest; and providing for an effective date."

CO CHAI R SAMUELS noved to adopt committee substitute (CS) HB 130
| abel ed 24-GH1034\G Bullock, 3/4/05 as a work draft. [ No
objection was stated, and the conmittee treated Version G as
before it.]

CO CHAIR RAMRAS said the committee will take public testinony in
increments of two mnutes, and try to vote the bill out today.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD obj ected for purposes of discussion. He
said he was told that the |land selections were set in stone, and
he wanted to know how t he changes in the CS cane about.

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS said he fought [ong and hard on HB 130 and

is pleased that the conmttee is close to noving it. He said he
is supportive of Representative Crawford, and now that he and

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 5- March 4, 2005



sonme others have what they want, he is enbarrassed that
Representative Crawford' s concerns were not addressed.

CO CHAI R SAMUELS said nost public conplaints are taken care of.
He added that he thought the community of Kodiak should buy the
rocket |aunch site. He opined that the conmttee essentially
made parks out of all the lands that were renoved from HB 130.
He said he agrees with the watershed-related changes. He thinks
the committee "listened to the public process,” including
personal attacks directed at Co-Chair Ranras.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX thanked the co-chairs for elimnating the
Kodi ak parcel from HB 130.

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS said he did not renenber any testinony on
Lena Point.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD noted there was a |lot of testinony by
the public, the commttee, and other nenbers of the |egislature.
This CS cane from sonmewhere, but he said he did not know how it
was negoti at ed. Representative WIson's concerns weren't
addressed in it, he said, and he would like to know how the CS
canme about.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said there is nothing that puts any |ands
into a park status--they are fully devel opable by DNR through a
public process. "W have not put any restriction on this land,"”
he added.

CO CHAIR RAMRAS said that Lena Point was in the original bil

and was del eted because of ingress and egress problens. "W\
approached Representative Wyhrauch, and our intention in the
resource commttee was to get a bill that we thought would be
able to nove out of resources and through finance, and neke it
to the house floor." He said that Representative Wyhrauch sits
on finance and wanted his concerns on behalf of his constituents
in Southeast. DNR s letter dated March 3, 2005, references
Li sianski Point and Biorka Island, he added. He said he didn't
want the finance commttee to "listen to constituents and try to
extract land parcels.” He said the resource committee |istened
to two constituent groups, the public who called in, and the
menbers of the conmmttee. He said he got together with the co-

chair and staff to nmke it work, and "we wll deliver 97.12
percent of the land the university requested.” If there is a
suggestion of chicanery or anything |less than sunshine, he wll
stand by the bill, and he anticipates getting sonme heat fromthe

adm nistration and the university. He said he wants to get on

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 6- March 4, 2005



with the people's business and not clog up the conrittee with HB
130 for another two or three weeks.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD said he would have |iked to have input,
but "the mnority is the mnority." He renoved his objection.

CO CHAI R RAMRAS explained that in the CS, page 5, |ines 27-28
covers the issue of access and it allows DNR to protect trails,

easenents, and m scel |l aneous errors. He said page 7, lines 21-
24, corrects omssions and errors like were found in Hollis and
"per haps Tenakee." On pages 7-8, lines 28-31, acreage is
extracted from the bill based on concerns by the public and
Representatives WIson, LeDoux, and Elkins. He said that on
page 8, lines 11-29, the CS addresses an anendnent for public
notice and process, and on page 10, lines 16-22, the nunicipa

entitlement process is addressed.
1:24:24 PM

CO CHAIR RAMRAS said he wll offer an anendnent for |ogging
interests in his district.

1:25:17 PM

DORI' S BAI LEY, Assenbly Menber, Cty and Borough of Sitka, said
the assenbly had an energency neeting to unaninously oppose the
transfer of HB 130 parcels that are within the borough, with the
exception of the Japonski Island parcel. She said that wusing
the term "not in ny back yard,"” is an excuse not to "consider
the very strong and |oud protests you have heard from Sout heast
Al aska." She noted that the bill is intended to transfer
"viable conmercial property” appropriate for devel opment, which
woul d provide funds to the university. She explained that the
university already controls 680 acres in Sitka, and the Al aska
Mental Health Trust controls substantial acreage, so she said
the community is "already shouldering nore than its share" of
trust | ands. She questioned whether the university will accept
| ocal | and-use controls. Biorka Island is 16 mles into the
Pacific COcean and inpossible to get to for days at a tine, and
it is near a heavily used fishery. The possibility of a |odge
could put pressure on that fishery and on Goddard Hot Springs.

1:28: 25 PM
MS. BAILEY said that Biorka Island contains navigational aids,

including two radars and other communi cation equipnment, and she
asked if the Federal Aviation Admi nistration has been contacted.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -7- March 4, 2005



She said that she is "anamzed" that the university would want
land that has a specific encunbrance. M ddl e Island now has
many honmes and cabins, and "the entire devel opabl e beachfront of
Mddle Island is targeted for residential and recreational uses
and has already been selected. The university would acquire two
beachfront areas, one which is very steep and one that that runs
dry at lowtide. The center of the island is steep and rocky...

CO CHAI R RAMRAS asked Ms. Bailey to "wind it up.”

M5. BAILEY concl uded that devel opnent is not appropriate on the
parcels in HB 130. She said the city needs land for building
residential units, and the university owns a |arge parcel that
the city "has coveted for residential-building use for many
years." She nmentioned the cost of utilities, and her testinony
was cut off.

1: 30: 57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD said he tried to give M. Bailey's
concerns "a voice," but decisions were nade without it.

1:31:16 PM

VALERY MCCANDLESS, Mayor, Wangell, said the Wangell city
council has not taken an official position on HB 130. She added
that the city will make its position on Aive Cove, Thons Pl ace,

and Earl West Cove known in a few weeks.
1: 32: 02 PM

STACEY FRITZ, Student, University of Alaska, Fairbanks, said
that it was wonderful that the concerns of the public regarding
Narrow Cape on Kodiak |sland were considered. She added t hat
funding the wuniversity is inportant and she feels terrible
opposi ng support, but "this type of support” has conflicts and
provides little funding. She noted that it is a land grant
university, but the land grant act was passed about 150 years
ago and she questions how applicable it is in today's world.
The land transfer could provide only 2.5 percent of the
university's annual funding, but only if it is managed perfectly

with no problens. She questions whether the potentia
envi ronnental degradation and stress to small communities is
worth it.

1: 34: 24 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 8- March 4, 2005



DEB SPENCER, Co-owner and Manager, Shoreline Inc, Pelican, said
she conpared | and selections in Lisianski Inlet with the parcels
identified in DNR s Northern Southeast Area Plan, and she said
that the parcels in HB 130 are categorized as recreational: not
to be sold to individuals and to remain in their current state.
The areas designated in the area plan for settlenent are only
for residential and private use. The university will not have
to follow the plan. People worked very hard on the area plan..

1: 36: 00 PM

CO CHAI R RAMRAS told her that her two m nutes were up

M5. SPENCER continued to note that her business has a tideland
permt to anchor her scow off lands in HB 130. The business has
held the permt for over 20 years, and the land transfer w|l
di spl ace her business which buys fish from over 100 vessels.
She specul ated that the parcels that were renoved from HB 130
were in the district from a house resource nenber or had a high
proportion of testinony, and she pointed out that only one
person was allowed to testify from Pelican in spite of many
attenpting to.

1: 37: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked how the land transfer will hurt Ms.
Spencer' s busi ness.

M5. SPENCER said she has a fish-buying scow anchored three
mont hs each year, and after the wuniversity owns the adjacent
| and, she will not have any right to be there.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked what her fam |y woul d do.

M5. SPENCER said it was her famly's main source of inconme so
they would scranble to find another place to anchor the scow.

1: 38: 51 PM

JOHN  BURKE, Cener al Manager , Sout hern  Sout heast Regi onal
Aquacul ture Association (SSRAA), said he is against transferring
Neets Creek to the wuniversity, so he supports the anended
version of HB 130. He told the committee that conversations
with the wuniversity that were designed to I|essen SSRAA s
concerns about the land transfer have only heightened the
organi zation's concern. The wuniversity told him that the sole

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -9- March 4, 2005



pur pose of owning the property would be to generate revenue. He
said SSRAA agrees with the principle of privatization of public
lands but the cost may be to great with this [|and. SSRAA
prograns generate approxinmately $30 million in the |ocal econony
annual | y, he added.

1:40:41 PM
STACY STUDEBAKER, Kodi ak, thanked the commttee for being

responsive to Kodiak's concerns and elimnating the rocket
l aunch site from HB 130. She supports the university and is an

adj unct faculty, but she is "having trouble with this bill." It
is not a good way to fund the university for nore reasons than
she says she has tinme to discuss. She said the original bil

woul d have given the university a bad nane. She added that
Kodi ak has very little public land for recreation and that
Narrow Cape is the choicest accessible recreational |[and. She
concluded that the bill was on a fast track with no input from

affected comuniti es.
1: 43: 22 PM

CO- CHAIR RAMRAS said, "W are not funding the university...we
are fulfilling a contract between the State of Alaska and the
university...the lands have to cone from sonewhere and they have
to have sone value...we can't sinply transfer over frozen
tundra."”

1:44:11 PM

TED SM TH, Mayor , Pet er sbur g, is disturbed that HB 130
di sregards DNR s Central Southern Southeast Area Plan that was a
product of over two years of hard work by the state, federa
agencies, |local governnents, interest groups, and the public.
Fast-tracking HB 130 does not allow people to analyze the
i mpacts of the land transfers, he said, and the affected public
shoul d have anple opportunity to review and conment on it. He
added that the Sitka Access Study identifies the Warm Springs
Bay parcel as a ferry termnal site. State agencies, such as
the Departnment of Transportation & Public Facilities, were not
involved in the land selections. He added that Petersburg is
getting pressure to form a borough, and one of the few renaining
enticements for formng a borough is the ability to acquire

unencunbered land. "There's virtually no remaini ng unencunbered
state land that could be transferred to a borough,"” he said, and
the Gty of Petersburg will send a resolution and letter in

opposition to HB 130.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 10- March 4, 2005



1:46: 25 PM

MARK VI NSEL, Executive Director, United Fishernmen of Al aska,
said his organization has strong concerns regarding the Neets
Creek parcel, and he appreciates the CS

RON SCHONENBACH, retiree, Division of Mning, Land and Water,
Departnent of Natural Resources, said that he was involved in
| and selections in Southeast for nany years. He said it is
shocki ng that such a vast majority of the HB 130 | and sel ections
are in Southeast, affecting 13 different communities, when there
is such a large land base throughout the state. He opposes
conveying wldlife habitat, settlenment | ands, and public
recreation lands to the university. He noted that all witnesses
commented that DNR did a trenendous job on the area plans, and
the plans should be honored by retaining wildlife and recreation
lands in state hands. He believes it is short sighted to convey
the settlenment lands to the university, which should be sold in
a |land disposal program to the public. He said that once DNR
issues a quitclaim deed, the area plan has no neaning or
rel evance to the wuniversity, and the public is betrayed. It
"paints a very ugly picture for DNR because they lose trust in
DNR, " he said. He concluded that there is nothing magical about
the nunber of acres in HB 130, it could be any nunber, and the
| egislature can fix SB 7 and include fewer acres. There is a
“"terrible msconception" that the university will obtain |ong-
termrevenue fromthese | ands, because the best state |ands have
al ready been conveyed to others.

1: 50: 33 PM

MR. SCHONENBACH said it is appropriate that the university gets
sone |land, but the commttee needs to sit back and | ook at what
the public is saying and not rubber stanp what the governor has
proposed. There is no urgency, he said, and he is happy to see
the CS, but there are additional changes needed.

1:51: 37 PM

JOE BEEDLE, Vice President for Finance, Chief Financial Oficer
and Treasurer Trustee, Land G ant Endownent Fund, University of
Al aska, Fairbanks, said that he hopes there is land to replace
the land parcels renmoved from HB 130 or else that there will be
an opportunity to put the parcels back in the bill. He is
concerned that the trend is for renoval of land that w tnesses
have concerns about.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -11- March 4, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS has a conceptual anmendnent to add a parce
to HB 130 that was in SB 7: 3,000 acres north of Tok near the
Canadi an bor der.

MR. BEEDLE said that the property did not have an inconme val ue
as good as ot hers.

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS said he won't introduce it.
1: 54: 43 PM

REBECCA MCGUI RE, Graduate  Student, University of Al aska,
Fai r banks, said she wants a well-funded university system but
she is concerned with HB 130 because it is renobving public
i nvol venent and gives the university a bad nane. People are cut
off after two m nutes, when they obviously have nore to say, she
sai d.

ROSEMARY MCGUI RE, Fairbanks, said she is speaking for a |arge
nunber of famlies that are involved in the wuniversity as
faculty, staff, or students, and they are united in the belief

that the university lands bill is bad for the state and for the
uni versity. The bill wll not generate nuch income for the
university, she said, but it nmay keep the state from granting
future funds. The bill treats Alaska' s people unethically,
because comunities are given very little tine to respond to a
bill that has been in preparation for over a year. Many

cormunities may be affected strongly and adversely, she said,
and her primary concern is losing the right to public process.
She said she heard Mary Mntgonery attenpting to assuage the
fears of the loss of the public process, but it is disingenuous
because the bill specifically elimnates the process. The bil
is not so much a plan to fund the wuniversity but it is a
transparent plan to develop public Jlands wthout public
sancti on.

1:57: 36 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON told Ms. McGuire to | ook at the CS on page
8, line 10, which addresses the public notification process. He

said that he is confortable that it has been addressed.

M5. MCGQUI RE said that her group has been |ooking at that, and it
doesn't sol ve the problem

M KE REEVES asked the status of the Hollis area nmapping error.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -12- March 4, 2005



ROBERT LOEFFLER, Director, Division of Mning, Land and Water,
Departnent of Natural Resources, Juneau, said the CS allows DNR
to fix mapping errors.

1: 59: 39 PM

LORI MASTRELLA, Port Al exander, said she has been listening to
all the hearings on SB 130, and this is the first time she has
been able to speak, and she knows that there are nore people who
m ght not get that opportunity. She noted that there is so much
overwhel m ng negative testinony, and the anmendnents are not
enough. The bill goes too far too fast, and a couple of band-
aids will not nake bad | egislation good | egislation.

2:00: 51 PM

MONA CHRI STI AN, Petersburg, Al aska, said she owns property that
is in SB 130. Al though DNR told her it would get fixed, she
said property owners el sewhere encountered a simlar problem and
it took several years to clarify. She noted that SB 130's map
shows the conveyance of beachfront land, and that is already
privately owned. Most of land actually being offered is 1,200
feet off the beach in swanpy habitat. The parcel is 27 mles by
water from Petersburg, and there are no building codes, zoning,
utilities, or fire protection. Land was recently offered in
that area, she said, only 13 parcels of 40 were even bid on, and
| ast year there were 28 parcels offered by the university and
only two were bid on, she said. Dunpi ng vol umes of property on
the market depresses land values and takes away from future
borough selections. Mst inportantly, she said, the state needs
to responsi bly fund education in Al askan.

2:03: 12 PM

CO- CHAIR RAMRAS told her to look at section 9 of the CS, which
t akes unorgani zed boroughs into account.

STEVE JOHNSON, Kiksadi Tribal dan, Sitka, said that Lisianski
Peninsula is adjacent to a Native allotment and a fish canp
where children learn cultural traditions. The land to be given
to the university has house pits and significant cultural sites,
he added. M. Johnson said Biorka |Island was owned by a fanobus
man in Tlingit history, and his house is still there. Hs |land
was taken by the mlitary with a promse to give it back, and
that promse is yet to be fulfilled. Next to that allotnent was

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 13- March 4, 2005



M. Johnson's great grandfather's house, and his grave is stil
there, he said. The Kiksadi clan is opposed to HB 130.

2:05: 09 PM

CO CHAIR SAMUJELS said that he thought those issues have been
taken care of, and that it is in the Bureau of Land Managenent's
hands.

CO CHAI R RAMRAS said that M. Loeffler is "nodding his head.”

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON said she is wunconfortable because the
federal governnent noves so slowy and cultural effects could be
destroyed by then. She asked DNR if it wll wait before
conveying the | and.

MR. LOEFFLER said the "potential conflict for Native allotnents
are for Biorka |sland. That area has been excluded from our TA

[the land tentatively approved to the state]. If M. WValton
reinstates a portion of his allotnent which was denied by BLM
and they approve it, it is automatically excluded from our TA. "

Regardi ng developing it with that cloud on title, he said, "The
answer is we would probably try to work with BLM so they get
their answer before we convey it to the university. Should that
not be possible, we wuld probably convey it wth the
exclusion.” He said the land is not devel opable until the cloud
on a title is lifted, which could take three or four years or
nor e.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON said there were a lot of ifs.

MR, LCEFFLER noted that there is other state |land where the
state knows there is a Native allotnment, and DNR knows it is not
ethical to sell land with a cloud on the title, so it doesn't.
"I have no doubt that the university would be the sane way," he
sai d. He added that if the state gives the land to the
university, it will have no affect on whether M. Wlton gets
his land from BLM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked if the university will be under the
sanme rules as the state.

MR. LOEFFLER replied, yes, M. Wlton's ownership is excluded

fromthe title. If M. Walton's claim prevails, whatever |and
is included will be his.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -14- March 4, 2005



CO CHAI R SAMJELS suggested the bill could be worded to say the
land will be conveyed to the university when the title is clear.

MR. LCEFFLER said, "It wouldn't natter one way or the other
because we can't convey what we don't own."

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON said she is satisfied.

LEI GH CERBER, Ketchi kan Chanber of Commerce, said the chanber
supports the renoval of Neets Bay from HB 130, and it passed a
resolution on it.

2:11:35 PM

CHARLI E PI ERCY, Comrercial Fisherman, Ketchikan, stated that he
supports renoving Neets Bay from SB 130 because a third of his
incone cones from that hatchery. He said that he has two
children at the University of Al aska, and, "I would ruch rather
catch a fish and pay their way than have them conme steal ny
l'ivelihood."

DEEDI E PEARSON, Kodiak, said, "I hope you hear the sigh of
relief from Kodiak to have the rocket |aunch area renpved." She
said she came to Kodiak in 1941, and there is a lack of
recreational area for the people of Kodiak; Narrow Cape 1is

"about the only open land for recreating."” She cautioned that
the commttee's decisions "have a very long-reaching effect for
generations to cone." She said there is a viable cattle ranch

at Narrow Cape. She thanked the commttee.

2:13:33 PM

JULI E HURSEY, Petersburg, stated that she was very glad to hear
about the exenptions in the CS, but she is still concerned about
remote sites that were designated as "R U. " in DNR s area pl ans,
including Sanford Cove, Endicott Arm \VWhitney Island, Reed
| sland, and Mte Cove. It took several years to develop the
pl ans, and those areas should be renoved, and she asked the
commttee not to rush the bill out.

CO CHAI R RAMRAS rem nded Ms. Hursey that the resource conmttee
"is only the first stop,” for the bill.

2:15: 38 PM

M KE LI TZOWN Kodi ak, said he is part of a group of residents who
have been circulating a petition for continued public access to

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -15- March 4, 2005



Nar r ow Cape. After Co-Chair Ranras told him he had succeeded

M. Litzow said he would continue circulating the petition
because that is what the group told people they would do, and he
wants to show the |ocal support for continued access to that
parcel in the future.

DENNI S ROGERS, Petersburg, said he applauds the conmttee for
renoving the Warm Spring Bay parcel. He suggested the process
for land selections be reviewed, and it should have involved the
public nore in the beginning.

2:18: 00 PM

BOB LESHER, Pelican, questioned why this land grant proposal
becanme the funding source for the university. He said that the
| ack of public hearings suggests that another agenda was being
served. There are $30 billion in the state's permanent fund

and he asked why that noney wasn't considered. He added that HB
130 is a statewide issue, and the solution should be shared by

everyone. He stated "the best solution neans a contribution
from our Permanent Fund Dividends. This incone is a great
wi ndfall we did not earn. What better way to denonstrate our

di rect support for such a worthy progran? |If we do not accept
this reasoning, why should we direct a land-grant solution to
targeted regions to solve this issue?" He said according to M.

Beedl e, the university would realize $5 mllion annually; "our
average permanent fund dividends could be reduced by l|ess than
one percent and would match that anmount.” He concluded that his

region wants "the right to determne paths to a vision of our
area's devel opnment . "

2:19:55 PM

COCHAIR RAMRAS said the land grant conmmtnent precedes
st at ehood and t he pernmanent fund.

MR. LESHER asked why that should be set in stone. "If it is a
matter of noney, shouldn't other sources be investigated?"
2:20: 33 PM

NORM CARSON, Pelican, said that SB 130 is a tragic bill; it
takes large parcels out of his comunity. He said the South

Li sianski parcel is 280 acres, and DNR |ots that have been sold
in the past have been three acres. He added that he knows the
parcel well, and there are |less than eight buildable lots on it.
He suggested that either DNR is msleading the university or the

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 16- March 4, 2005



university has plans to sell huge parcels that only specul ators
or land barons can buy. The average Al askan will not be able to
partici pate. Trust and respect for the university and DNR has
been tarni shed, he said. More effort should be spent |ooking at
other ways to fund the wuniversity. He stressed that the
devel opment of HB 130 shoul d have involved communities; instead,
people got maps on a web site three days before the first
heari ng. "This bill is heavy-handed and denonstrates why the
public rightfully suspects bureaucratic institutions." He
concluded that the bill should be dropped, or else DNR should
start over and involve the public "on day one--not at the end.”

2:22:50 PM

M KE SALLEE, Ket chi kan, thanked Representative Elkins for
getting Neets Bay extracted from HB 130; however, the bill was
ill conceived from the start. He said he has doubts that the
university deserves the land especially since federal |ands wll
conbine to produce close to 3/4 mllion acres. He is concerned
with the Mser Bay parcel which will likely be an unsightly
ti mber harvest. The committee has nmade sone val uabl e amendments
to HB 130, but it needs to go back to a public process. He said
he spent many, many hours on the DNR area plans, and that
process is not perfect but it has the HB 130 process beat by
far.

2:24:46 PM

M KE ROUND, Ketchikan, said he comends Representative ElKkins
for taking Neets Creek out of HB 130.

KEN DUCKETT, Executive Director, United Southeast Al aska G|
Netters, said he echoes M ke Round's comrents.

2:25:54 PM

JIM SLATER, Pelican, said the community has sent severa
letters, and the majority of the town signed a petition. They
are concerned "that such a huge percentage of land is being
transferred related to the ampunt of existing private |and."

The inpact of transferring 1,000 acres in Lisianski Inlet is
significant. He added that Mte Cove should be renoved fromthe
bill and the parcel at Sunnyside should be reduced.

2:27:03 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -17- March 4, 2005



CHRI S HOMRD, Pelican, said that the university will be a good
steward of the Mte Cove | and. He said there are two schools
that are boarded up, and HB 130 will help the econony.

MR.  JOHNSON offered a followup comment from his previous
testi nony. He said that Biorka Island has high Ilevels of
mlitary contam nation including PCB, |ead, and diesel. He said
that Mddle Island has petroglyphs and it is one of the few
areas that subsistence harvesters can go to get herring eggs.

MYRL THOWPSON, Susitna Valley, said he spoke to people in the
Wl low area, and no one is against |land for settlenent, but they
are against land going to the tinber industry which is currently
clear cutting, chipping trees, and barging it all to Korea. He
said there is a lot of opposition. He ended by saying that
politics breaks down into two words: poly, which nmeans many, and
tics, which neans bl oodsuckers.

2:29: 55 PM

CO CHAI R RAMRAS cl osed public testinony. He said the conmttee
has heard every single person who wanted to testify today.

The commttee took an at-ease from2:30 p.m to 2:34 p.m
2:34:17 PM

COCHAIR SAMIJELS noved to adopt Conceptual Anmendnent 1 as
foll ows: Lisianski Peninsula and Biorka Island lands will not be
conveyed from DNR until titles are clear. Hearing no objection
Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.

2:35: 11 PM

CO-CHAIR RAMRAS said he would like to offer Anmendnent 2, which
read [with oral changes]:

Page 10, |ine 13:
Del ete "and"

Page 10, line 14, following "(4)":

Insert "has determned, following notice and any
public coment, that the land is not considered by
| ocal businesses to be commercially viable for future
ti mber harvest resource devel opnent and that disposa
of the land wll not interfere with that future
devel opnment; and

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 18- March 4, 2005



(5"
CO CHAI R SAMUJELS obj ected and asked for an explanation

CO CHAIR RAMRAS read Anendnent 2, and said that the commttee
heard concerns from "lunber interests in the Fairbanks area who
harvest tinber and use it locally, not for export, and they
don't want to be circunvented from being able to have access to
t he boreal forest and any surrounding areas."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if a local business can it halt the
university's transaction even if it doesn't conmt to harvesting
t he associ ated tinber.

JIM POUND, Staff to Representative Ranras, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, responded, "What this has to do wth, is that
there's a clause in the bill that allows for |and swaps, and
there was concern in the boreal in particular up on the Nenana
Ridge, an area...that is considered relatively prine tinber for
that part of the state for the local mlls. There was a concern
that the wuniversity may decide to land swap that out for
sonething else, and they wanted to make sure that that could be
mai ntai ned for tinber harvest before a swap was done with other
land, and its just part of the public process--they're allowed
to chime in and keep our mlls open, unlike what's happening in
Sout heast . "

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if it is possible to just veto the
swap or disposal and not actually harvest the tinber.

MR. POUND said, "As | understand it...it has to do with swapping
| and, and part of the public process that they wll have, yes
they probably will have a little nore say if that land is being

harvested for tinber than other stakeholders may."
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked for M. Loeffler's comrents.
MR LOEFFLER said he has not seen the amendnent.

2:40:10 PM

The commttee took an at-ease from2:40 p.m to 2:44 p. m
2:44: 14 PM

CO CHAI R RAMRAS wi t hdrew Anmendnent 2 and nade it into Conceptua
Amrendnent 2, and he said, "On page 10, line 14, that we insert

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -19- March 4, 2005



"has determ ned followi ng notice and any public coment that the
land is not viable for tinber harvest or that disposal of the
land will not interfere with that developnent, and concl udes
that it is in the best interest of the wuniversity to
di sestablish some or all of that research forest."

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX objected for discussion purposes, and she
asked what the future developnent is that won't be interfered
with.

CO CHAI R RAMRAS asked M. Pound to help him

MR POUND said he believes that the word future is being
deleted, and the developnent "would reference back to tinber
harvest devel opnent."

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said, "So if it's determ ned that the |and
is not comercially viable, and that its disposal wll not
interfere with tinber harvest devel opnent, then the |land can be
sold off, is that the idea?"

MR. POUND said yes, and he suggested Co-Chair Ranras |eave the
word "conmercially" in the anendnent because there are two types
of tinber--comrercial and not.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON suggested changing the wording so it says
"Wl not interfere with commercial tinber harvest."

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if there is an official definition of
"commercial ."

MR. POUND said M. Loeffler believes DNR has a definition.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said that since Anendnent 2 is conceptual
the comm ttee does not need the | anguage.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX wi thdrew her objection, and thereby,
conceptual Anendnent 2 carri ed.

2:50: 01 PM

CO CHAI R SAMUELS said Co-Chair Ranras has done an excellent job
with a lot of grace in spite of people being "overwhel m ngly

abusive." He said he believes HB 130 helps the university and
gets nore lands into private hands. He said lands will remain
controversial, and gas rights will likely be argued as well.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 20- March 4, 2005



2:50:59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX seconded Co-Chair Sanuel's remarks about
Co- Chair Ranras, and she said she views HB 130 as an exanpl e of
the public process working. She said, "There were two very
controversial pieces of land, the public let us know where they
stood on that." Everyone was heard and the end result was that
several controversial parcels were taken out of the bill. It is
an exanple of how this |egislature works, she said.

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS said this CS addresses nost of the
problens, and it is a far better bill. He concluded that he
wants to wait wuntil Mnday to nove the bill because the
commttee has already been accused of fast tracking it, and the
committee did say it was going to nove the bill Monday.

2:52: 52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he appreciated clearing up the right-
of -way and public notice provisions of HB 130.

CO CHAI R RAMRAS responded that he appreciates the kind words and
he feels bad "we didn't have tinme to give the public as much
time as they want to unwind on this." He noted that the
commttee had thought it could agree on 250,000 acres of the
260, 000-acre i st. "Wth Amendrment 1, we have w thdrawn 9, 000
acres." He added that since public testinony is closed and the
public will be able to continue comenting while the bill is in
house finance and on the floor, he doesn't feel the commttee is
violating the public trust by passing HB 130 today. The CS
meets nmuch of the public concern, he said, and he feels
confortable noving the bill today.

2:54: 55 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to report CSHB 130, |abeled 24-
GH1034\ G, Bullock, 3/4/05, as anended, out of commttee wth

i ndi vidual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal notes.
Hearing no objection, CSHB 130(RES) was noved out of conmmttee.

2:55:24 PM
ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Resources Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 2:55 p. m

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -21- March 4, 2005



